
 

MINUTES 

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL/WYTHEVILLE 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2025 AT 6:00 PM 

     WYTHEVILLE MEETING CENTER  

333 COMMUNITY BOULEVARD, WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 

 

1. Persons Present: 

Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Holly Atkins, 
Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr., Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town 
Manager/Planning Director Elaine Holeton, Town Attorney Paul Cassell, Chief Deputy 
Clerk Brandi Jones, Planning Commission Chairwoman Lisa Anderson, Planning 
Commission Vice-Chairman David Schmidt, Planning Commissioner John Jones, Jr., 
Planning Commissioner Brad Litton, Planning Commissioner Keith Jones, Planning 
Commissioner George Wittwer, Denise Clay, Luther Hatmaker, John Woods, Teri Woods 

Persons Absent: 

Councilwoman Cathy Pattison 

2. RE: ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED 

A. Approval of Agenda 

Mayor Taylor advised that the first agenda item is the Approval of Agenda, and this 
required a motion and approval by the Council. She inquired if there was a motion to 
approve the agenda as presented.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Mayor Taylor. 

B. Presentation regarding the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a presentation regarding the 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) by Assistant Town Manager/Planning 
Director Elaine Holeton. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton stated 
that her goal at this meeting was to establish a baseline knowledge of Zoning and 
Subdivision Law, discuss the current status of Wytheville's Zoning and Subdivision 
Ordinances, discuss the draft UDO and have a roundtable discussion to establish the 
next steps moving forward. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton noted 
that there are two (2) paths moving forward. She advised that one step is to continue 
the traditional approach of having a separate Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, 



which would keep the original ordinances and continue to modify them in the future. 
Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton commented that the second 
approach is to pursue the new UDO, which would combine the Zoning and 
Subdivision Ordinances and continue the work of the Planning Commission in 
drafting the new UDO to repeal and replace the two (2) existing ordinances. She 
stated that the first Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 1950, and it was repealed and 
the current Zoning Ordinance was adopted in 1969. Assistant Town 
Manager/Planning Director Holeton noted that the current Zoning Ordinance has 
been amended 100 times in 52 years. She stated that the Subdivision Ordinance was 
adopted in 1970, and that it has been amended 14 times since then. Assistant Town 
Manager Holeton then reviewed why the draft UDO was developed, the timeline for 
development of the draft UDO and action that has taken place that has led to this 
meeting.  

Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton reviewed information regarding 
"Zoning 101." She stated that, in the United States, zoning began in 1915, in 
response to concerns for light and air and incompatible uses next to each other. 
Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton noted that zoning addresses 
things like the height of buildings, building setbacks, distance between structures, 
required lot sizes and frontage requirements, uses of property by zone districts, etc. 
She then presented and reviewed the current Zoning Map for Wytheville. Assistant 
Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton advised that the work that Staff is, 
currently, performing on the ordinances will not change the Zoning Map. She stated 
that setbacks create fire separation between structures, provide a buffer to rights-of-
way areas where streets and utilities are located and they create a consistent 
community character or aesthetic. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director 
Holeton also noted that setbacks provide separation distance between neighbors that 
limit nuisances like crowding, noise, shading and lack of airflow.  

Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton stated that she would now review 
some information regarding "Subdivision 101." She noted that the Subdivision 
Ordinance regulates how property is subdivided into usable lots of sufficient size and 
layout; shows how lot lines are changed between properties; provides guidance on 
how infrastructure is inspected and accepted into the public system; provides 
guidance on surety policy; and, notes the subdivision process from plat development 
to recordation. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton then discussed 
the subdivision development types in Wytheville and their meanings, which included 
Greenfield Development, Infill Development, Additions and Improvements and Site 
Redevelopment.  

Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton advised that the next topic she 
would like to discuss is Unified Development Ordinances (UDO). She stated that a 
UDO is a document in which traditional zoning and subdivision regulations are 
combined into one document that can be very helpful to developers to reference 
information in one document. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton 
commented that a UDO may help local governments to respond better to the way 
development occurs and help avoid overlapping regulations. She advised that, along 
with the compiling of regulations and policies, UDOs use consistent language and 



definitions, with illustrations and tables, often in easy read formats to further help 
people understand the regulations. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director 
Holeton reviewed the reason why it is important to have everything spelled out 
through ordinances, to prevent information being interpreted differently by various 
people. She then gave examples of language in the current Zoning and Subdivision 
Ordinances that is vague, along with examples of how zoning and subdivision 
regulations relate to each other.  

Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton presented some challenges 
regarding modifying the existing Zoning Ordinance. She stated that some of these 
challenges include alignment and formatting; difficulty navigating; general standards; 
definitions; no Conditional Use Section; and, no Site Development Standards 
Section. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton advised that she feels 
like by the time Staff corrects everything that is wrong with the current ordinance, a 
new ordinance would have already been retyped. She then reviewed each of these 
challenges and Zone District Standards in detail for the Town Council members’ and 
Planning Commissioners’ understanding. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director 
Holeton stated there are, also, some existing issues regarding the Subdivision 
Ordinance, and that those issues include it still referencing 15.1 of the State Code; 
does not specify what needs to be on a subdivision plat; does not specify 
development standards; contains vague language; the procedure section is outdated 
and no longer conforms to State Code; Floodplain regulations need to be in the 
Zoning Ordinance and not the Subdivision Ordinance; does not clearly state the role 
of the developer; and, it does not outline the subdivision application process. She 
then presented Article 4 of the proposed UDO that addresses subdivisions. Assistant 
Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton commented that she is most excited for the 
Side Development Standards portion of the UDO because she believes it would be 
very beneficial to the Town. She stated that the potential next steps for the UDO, if 
the Town Council allows the Planning Commission to continue working on it, is for 
the Planning Commission to recommend the entire UDO to the Town Council; the 
Town Council begins a series of work sessions to consider sections of the UDO; the 
Town Council can send back sections that they do not like to the Planning 
Commission; and, the Town Council approves pieces of the UDO with a delayed 
implementation of the entire UDO until all sections are approved.  

C. Roundtable discussion regarding the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is roundtable discussion regarding 
the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired of 
Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton if they could receive copies of the 
information that was removed from the original version of the UDO, and if she could 
help give her a better understanding as to why those items were removed. Assistant 
Town Manager/Planning Director Holeton stated that she could provide Vice-Mayor 
Johnson with that information. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if Town Attorney Cassell 
had any recommendations for the Council regarding the UDO. Town Attorney Cassell 
noted that he thinks review of the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances is wise. He 
stated that changes need to be made in increments, so that Staff can explain these 
changes to make sure citizens understand the amendments. Vice-Mayor Johnson 



stated that she has reviewed parts of the UDO, and that it is a lot to try and 
understand. She noted that she wants to make changes to the Zoning and 
Subdivision Ordinances in increments, in comparison to the current ordinances, so 
that the Council and citizens are able to have a better understanding of the changes 
that are being made. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she has done some research 
on UDOs, and they have pros and cons like everything else. She advised that she 
has no issue with moving forward with the UDO, as long as it is presented in 
increments. Mayor Taylor stated that she feels like presenting the changes in 
increments would be more beneficial to the Council. She noted that she agrees with 
moving forward with the UDO if it can be presented to the Council in an incremental 
approach. Planning Commission Chairwoman Lisa Anderson commented that the 
Planning Commission agrees with the suggestions that have been made by the 
Council. She stated that the Planning Commission did not pass the original version of 
the UDO due to it not being able to understand the entire document, so the Planning 
Commission had started reviewing the UDO section-by-section and comparing it to 
the current Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances. Councilman Hand noted that he 
would like to thank everyone for the amount of time and work that has been involved 
to develop to the proposed UDO. He commented that he was afraid of the idea of a 
UDO at first, however, he has now grown to respect it and would like to see the Town 
work on it. Councilman Hand inquired if there could be some changes made to the 
current Zoning Ordinance that address some of the issues that the Town is currently 
dealing with until the UDO has been adopted. He then discussed some of those 
issues that the Town is dealing with regarding zoning. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated 
that she would like to have language put in the current Zoning Ordinance regarding 
camping in tents and recreational vehicles. Planning Commissioner Brad Litton noted 
that he was the Chairman of the Planning Commission when the UDO was 
considered for approval. He commented that he understood there was a split vote 
regarding the approval of the UDO, however, they were always in support of the 
UDO, but there were some sections that the Planning Commissioners wanted to 
review more before approving it. Planning Commissioner Litton stated they have 
been reviewing the UDO section-by-section, and they voted not to approve the UDO 
because they did not feel it was ready to be sent to the Council for recommendation. 
Discussion continued regarding the Planning Commissioners not wanting to scrap 
the UDO, the Commission’s reason for not approving the UDO for Town Council 
approval, a timeline moving forward with the UDO and how an incremental 
presentation approach will affect the timeline of the UDO.  It was the consensus of 
the Town Council and the Planning Commission to move forward with the UDO in an 
incremental approach, and for this topic to be placed on the next Town Council 
meeting agenda for Council action.  

3. RE: ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to be discussed, the meeting was adjourned. (7:06 p.m.) 

 

 



                 
        Sherry G. Corvin, Interim Town Manager 

 

         
 Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk 


